NASA Glenn Research Center & Plum Brook Station

Solid Waste Removal & Recycling Pre-proposal Questions and Answers
(NASA solicitation number NNC12ZCO017R)

1. Attachment A:2.0-B. Contractor to provide resources and equipment necessary both “inside” and outside buildings. Are we correct to understand the “inside” containers are smaller office type containers that would require manual emptying?  What are the sizes of these containers and do we need to supply them? We understand specs state contractor is to supply the equipment, but have thoughts that NASA may own these “inside” containers.

Answer:  Current contractor provides a 55 gal trash container for collection of recycled paper inside the buildings.  Contractor is responsible for providing these paper collection containers and manually emptying them.

2. Attachment A:4.2.5-A. Please confirm if contractor is responsible to transport landscaping debris, wood and wood pallets placed by solid waste containers to containers specified for consolidation of these items. Please confirm what equipment the current contractor has registered to be onsite with GRC to complete this process. (Boom truck, fork lift, ext.….)

Answer:  Wood, including pallets, not larger than 4’ x 4’, to be recycled is placed on the ground next to the trash dumpsters and collected once per week and placed inside a 20 yd roll-off dumpster, which is provided by the current contractor.  Landscape debris is placed in a 40 yd roll-off by NASA employees and emptied as needed.  Contractor provides 40 yd roll-off for landscape debris and two 20 yd roll-offs for wood, which remain on-site.
3. Are the containers to consolidate landscaping debris, wood and wood pallets a part of the list of roll-off containers in attachment F.

Answer:   Yes
4. Attachment “H” page 2 and 3, there are 60 paper recycling locations at GRC listed in specs. Can you please confirm the size correspondent to the location of the containers, also please specify which are indoors? Please feel free to provide a marked up page 2 & 3 of Attachment “H.”

All containers are the 55-gal type located inside the various buildings, with the exception of OAI and the daycare that are kept outside.  Bldg. 215 is located inside the shop area.
5. Attachment “H” page 3, there is a list of paper recycling locations at Plum Brook.  Please confirm the sizes of the containers.  Please confirm the status of the locations listed below “the box.” Are these additional containers?  If yes, what are the sizes?

Answer:   Containers at Plum Brook are the same size (55-gal).  The additional locations below the box are at GRC and are located inside the buildings and are the same size (55-gal).
6. Attachment “H.” For both GRC and Plum Brook, what is the pickup frequency for these containers?

Answer:  Recycled paper is picked up once per week at GRC and as needed at Plum Brook (approx. once per month).
7. Attachment “I” page 2, there are 38 cardboard recycling locations listed at GRC in specs. Can you please confirm the size and location of the containers, also please specify which are indoors?

Answer:  Cardboard recycle containers are owned by the NASA and located inside the buildings or on the loading dock at the specified locations.  Containers are a blue or grey plastic tub approx. 5’ long x 4’ wide x 3’ tall.  There are 2 yd dumpsters located outside at buildings 15, 107 and 336 that are provided by the contractor and used only for recycled cardboard and collected once per week along with the paper and other cardboard.  
8. Attachment “I” page 2, there is one cardboard recycling location listed at Plum Brook in specs. Can you please confirm the size of this container, also please specify if it is inside or outside?

Answer:  Container at Plum Brook is the same plastic tub, owned by NASA, and is located inside Bldg. 9209
9. Attachment “I”, for both GRC and Plum Brook, what is the pickup frequency for these containers?

Answer:  All paper and cardboard are collected together once per week at GRC and as needed at Plum Brook (approx. once per month).
10. There are 23 scrap metal locations at GRC listed in specs. Can you please confirm the size of the containers, also please specify which are indoors? Please confirm pickup frequency?

Answer:  The scrap metal dumpsters (approx. 3 yd) are used to collect recycled metal throughout the Center and are typically located next to the trash dumpster at the buildings specified in Attachment D.
11. Can we pass through disposal increases, tax, surcharges, and Gov. Increases?
Answer:  No, this is a fixed price contract and any increases should be included in the contract price.
12. Do you have a recent annual or monthly tonnage report for any or all of the following: Solid, Recycling, Yard Waste, and/or Scrap Metal?
Answer:  NASA GRC Lewis Field produced a two month average of approximately 80,000 Lbs of Solid Waste during the months of June and July 2012.  Approximately 28,000 Lbs of that was Scrap Metal. All other material varied greatly in weight during these two months.
13. There is no mention of plastic recycling containers at Plum Brook.  Is this correct?
Answer:  There is a 20 yd plastic and glass bottle dumpster located at Gate 219 where bottles are placed by the janitorial services staff and hauled as needed (once per month).  The contractor provides this roll-off.

14. Please provide a copy of your current contract with your current vendor for your solid waste removal and recycling.
Answer:  In order for the Government to provide a copy of the Contract, a request must be made to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Office.  Once the official request is made the FOIA Office will request a copy of the contract file and then the FOIA Office will provide it to the requestor. The process usually takes approximately 10 business days, but often takes a longer period of time.
15. Please provide your two most recent invoices from your current contractor.
Answer:  We are unable to provide any invoices.  Invoices can be requested under FOIA, but may not be releasable if deemed to contain proprietary contractor business information.  The typical monthly cost for the current contractor, based on the most recent two invoices is:  $21,852 - $22,545.  (These costs include routine daily trash removal, routine recycling (paper and cardboard) and IDIQ’s.
